%éy@ "
— e

Cityof 7
Sherwood
Oregon

Home of the Tialatin River National Wildlife Refuge

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY
MEETING PACKET

FOR
Tuesday, December 12, 2023

Sherwood City Hall
22560 SW Pine Street
Sherwood, Oregon

URA Board of Directors Meeting

(Following the 7:00 pm City Council Regular Meeting)

This meeting will be live streamed at
https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood



https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood

SHERWOOD URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MEETING AGENDA

Tuesday, December 12, 2023
(Following the 7:00 pm City Council Meeting)

City of Sherwood City Hall
22560 SW Pine Street
Sherwood, Oregon

This meeting will be live streamed at
https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood

URA BOARD SPECIAL MEETING

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. ROLL CALL
3. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Approval of August 15, 2023 URA Board Meeting Minutes (Sylvia Murphy, Agency Recorder)
B. Approval of November 21, 2023 URA Board Meeting Minutes (Sylvia Murphy, Agency
Recorder)

4. NEW BUSINESS

C. URA Resolution 2023-011, Authorizing the Agency Manager to Enter into a Public
Improvement Contract with Carter & Company, Inc. for Construction of the Hwy 99W
Pedestrian Bridge Project (Jason Waters, City Engineer)

5. ADJOURN TO CITY COUNCIL EXECUTIVE SESSION

URA Board of Directors Meeting Agenda
December 12, 2023
Page 1 of 1


https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood

DRAFT

SHERWOOD URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday, August 15, 2023

City of Sherwood City Hall
22560 SW Pine Street
Sherwood, Oregon 97140

URA BOARD REGULAR SESSION

1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Rosener called the meeting to order at 7:42 pm.

2. BOARD PRESENT: Chair Tim Rosener, Vice Chair Keith Mays, Board Members Kim Young, Dan
Standke, Renee Brouse, and Taylor Giles. Board Member Doug Scott was absent.

3. STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT: City Manager Keith D. Campbell, City Attorney Ryan
Adams, IT Director Brad Crawford, Public Works Director Craig Sheldon, Police Chief Ty Hanlon,
Community Services Director Kristen Switzer, Community Development Director Eric Rutledge, HR
Director Lydia McEvoy, Economic Development Manager Bruce Coleman, Finance Director David
Bodway, and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy.

4. CONSENT AGENDA:
A. Approval of July 18, 2023 URA Board Meeting Minutes
B. URA Resolution 2023-010, Authorizing Acceptance of a Special Public Works Fund Grant

from Business Oregon for the Dahlke Corridor Development Readiness Study

MOTION: FROM RENEE BROUSE TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA. SECONDED BY KIM
YOUNG. MOTION PASSED 6:0. ALL PRESENT MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR (BOARD MEMBER
DOUG SCOTT WAS ABSENT).

5. ADJOURN

Chair Rosener adjourned the meeting at 7:43 pm.

Attest:

Sylvia Murphy, MMC, Agency Recorder Tim Rosener, Chair

URA Board of Directors
August 15, 2023
Page 1 of 1



DRAFT

SHERWOOD URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday, November 21, 2023

City of Sherwood City Hall
22560 SW Pine Street
Sherwood, Oregon 97140

URA BOARD WORK SESSION

1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Rosener called the meeting to order at 7:23 pm.

2. BOARD PRESENT: Chair Tim Rosener, Vice Chair Keith Mays, Board Members Kim Young, Dan
Standke, Renee Brouse, Taylor Giles, and Doug Scott.

3. STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT: City Manager Keith D. Campbell, City Attorney Ryan
Adams, Systems Analyst Mark Swanson, Public Works Director Craig Sheldon, City Engineer Jason
Waters, Community Services Director Kristen Switzer, Community Development Director Eric Rutledge,
Economic Development Manager Bruce Coleman, Finance Director David Bodway, and City Recorder
Sylvia Murphy.

OTHERS PRESENT: KPFF Principal Engineer Curt Vanderzanden, KPFF Principal Engineer Craig
Totten, and KPFF Structural Engineer Nick Halsey.

4. TOPIC:
A. Hwy 99 Pedestrian Bridge Project

Finance Director David Bodway provided an overview of the current URA funds (see record, Exhibit A)
and reported that the figures were current as of November 16™. He reported that the URA currently had
roughly $16.5 million and explained that he would round that figure down as there were two ongoing
projects underway. He outlined that based on staff estimates, the pedestrian bridge project had an
estimated remaining cost of $29,178,913 and the Ice Age Drive project had an estimated remaining cost
of $17,888,810 for a total of $47,067,723. He reported that the $16,464,340 in remaining funds and the
$3 million in federal funding resulted in $27,603,382 in needed funding. He noted that the $4 million in
state funding for the pedestrian bridge had been included in the calculations. Public Works Director Craig
Sheldon added that the $29 million in remaining costs for the bridge included a 10% contingency and
clarified that if the Board chose to proceed with value engineering at this meeting, KPFF’s fees were not
included in those figures. Finance Director Bodway explained that the Board could choose to borrow $13-
14 million from the Water Fund as this was a capital project, but Oregon Budget Law required that those
funds be repaid within ten years. He explained that to make up the remaining shortfall, a loan could be
procured and commented interest rates were high at the moment, or the city could work with Business
Oregon to see if there was additional funding available. He continued that the real issue with these options
was the debt service payments. He explained that currently, the URA was ahead of schedule for property
tax collections, but because there were already debt service payment obligations, the city needed to
maintain that collection pace in order to cover its costs (e.g., debt service payments, audit fees, staff time,
etc.). He commented that staff would need to look into whether or not the URA could support another

URA Board of Directors
November 21, 2023
Page 1 of 6



DRAFT

debt service payment. Discussion occurred regarding stipulations around federal funding and project
timelines occurred. Vice Chair Mays spoke on Ice Age Drive and the need to determine when the city
was ready to build Ice Age Drive. Public Works Director Sheldon explained that once everything had
been submitted to the state for review, it would likely take 9-12 months to get an IGA, and if everything
went well, the earliest the city could go out to bid for the project would be late 2024 or early 2025. He
reported that 100% design was expected to be completed by spring 2024. Vice Chair Mays commented
that if the Board moved forward with the pedestrian bridge in some form, then the city would have a year
to sort out the necessary remaining funding for Ice Age Drive. Mr. Sheldon referred to borrowing money
from the Water Fund and clarified that there was a planned expansion in 2030 that the city needed to be
planning for. Chair Rosener asked that staff share that estimated figure with the Board. City Manager
Keith Campbell referred to Ice Age Drive and stated that it was important to note that there was two
pieces of property being purchased and referred to the right-of-way. He stated that the estimated $4-5
million in value for the property came when the road was completed and commented that this could help
close the funding deficit. Vice Chair Mays commented that once the road was complete, there would also
be “road money” available and Mr. Sheldon added that there would also be SDCs coming in from the
area. The Board discussed the need to move forward with the pedestrian bridge so as not to lose the
funding as well as harming chances with future funding asks. Discussion of the Water Fund occurred,
and Mr. Sheldon outlined that within the next five years, the water treatment facility expansion project
would be completed, and the water master plan and water conservation plan would need to be updated,
all of which would be funded from the Water Fund. He explained that the $3 million in Ice Age Drive
funding could not be used until agreements were in place. Vice Chair Mays spoke on the $14 million
deficit for the Ice Age Drive project and outlined that $4 million could be recouped from the sale of the
land, as well as road SDCs, transportation SDCs, other development fees for water and sewer and
commented that all of these would bring the total down significantly. The Board discussed the options of
proceeding with Ice Age Drive and recouping money from the area’s development to put towards the
pedestrian bridge versus proceeding with the pedestrian bridge and Vice Chair Mays commented that
the pedestrian bridge could be included in the Parks Master Plan and/or Transportation Master Plan. He
explained that it would be considered an asset that the city could then recover funding for the construction
of that asset. Chair Rosener added that the pedestrian bridge construction costs could be included in the
SDCs for Sherwood West if the city decided to apply for a UGB ask from Metro. Board Member Scott
recapped that there was enough funding to proceed with either project, but not both. He continued that if
the city proceeded with the pedestrian bridge, it may jeopardize the city’s ability to also complete the Ice
Age Drive project and the city may need to procure outside funding to complete that project. Chair
Rosener commented that he agreed that there were more options available for the Ice Age Drive project
in terms of phasing and funding and discussion occurred. Chair Rosener commented that in time, the
URA would have enough capacity built up that the city could then borrow against it and spoke on the
possibility of interest rates declining in the future and discussion regarding the Water Fund and TIFF
revenue occurred. Board Member Brouse asked regarding the new Public Works facility project and
Public Works Director Sheldon replied that the city had not applied for any state grants for that project
but would do so soon. He introduced KPFF consultants Curt Vanderzanden, Craig Totten, and Nick
Halsey to discuss the pedestrian bridge value engineering options. City Attorney Adams clarified that the
city had 30-days post RFP closure to award the contract or go out again. KPFF consultant Curt
Vanderzanden presented the “Sherwood 99W Pedestrian Bridge Crossing Value Engineering Work
Session” PowerPoint presentation (see record, Exhibit B) and recapped that the bids for the pedestrian
bridge had all come in significantly over estimates. He clarified that all of the figures quoted for the value
engineering options were based on their best estimates but were likely to be inaccurate. Vice Chair Mays
asked how value engineering would impact project timelines and Mr. Vanderzanden replied that he was
URA Board of Directors

November 21, 2023
Page 2 of 6



DRAFT

hopeful that tonight’s discussion could be incorporated when next speaking with contractors, provided
that contractors gave a reasonable price break for the chosen value engineering. He commented that if
those things happened, he was still hopeful that the construction of the bridge could be completed by
August 2025, as planned. He provided an overview of the bid result summary on page 3 of the
presentation and recapped that the estimates for the arch steel, lighting, and railings were the areas that
in which the most significant price differences from previous estimates were seen. He commented that
he presumed that the reasons for the cost differences were due to the cost of the materials and the
complexity of the fabrication. He stated that there were several areas of cost where some savings could
be drawn from and commented that the overall shape, span, and layout of the bridge would not be
affected by these options. KPFF consultant Craig Totten explained that when the value engineering
options were being developed, the goal was to maintain the overall aesthetic and project schedule. He
explained that they took the high-cost items they felt they could change the design of while not impacting
timelines and put those changes into different categories. He provided an overview of VE Option #1:
Railing Materials and explained this option would revise most stainless-steel components to galvanized
and would keep current railing design/geometry as well as the stainless-steel fabric mesh. He reported
that there was an approximate savings of $600,000-800,000 with this option. Discussion regarding the
maintenance of stainless-steel versus galvanized steel occurred and Mr. Totten stated that galvanized
steel had a similar maintenance level to stainless steel. He provided an overview of local examples of
galvanized versus stainless steel on pages 10-13 of the presentation. He provided an overview of VE
Option #2: Lighting & Railing Redesign and explained this option included the three options of: replacing
the illuminated railings with poles for pathways, replacing the architectural arch up/downlights with LED
strips, or a full redesign of the railings. He reported that there was an approximate savings of $3-4.5
million with this option. Chair Rosener asked if all of the proposed options were chosen, would a new bid
be necessary. Mr. Totten replied that they had hoped to pursue all chosen options without having to go
out for a new bid, but the purported savings were all dependent on contractors agreeing with their
estimates. Board Member Scott asked if there was a more detailed breakdown of what changes would
save certain amounts of money for VE Option #2 and the consultants replied that if the Board narrowed
down which options they wanted to pursue, then a more accurate cost savings analysis could be
performed. Vice Chair Mays commented that he was not in favor of reducing the width of the deck of the
bridge. Mr. Totten provided an overview of local examples of the proposed lighting changes on pages
17-19 of the presentation. He clarified that any changes to the lighting would still meet all safety
requirements and discussion regarding ongoing light maintenance requirements and costs occurred. Mr.
Vanderzanden offered to create a “lifecycle cost” for the different lighting/bulb options. Mr. Totten
provided an overview of local examples of the proposed changes to the rail design on pages 20-27 of the
presentation. Board Member Giles asked what the estimated savings would be for changes to the railing
and Mr. Halsey replied that they estimated a savings of $2.5-3 million. Mr. Totten explained that in order
to maximize the width in the current design, the mesh was integrated with the cables in the arches. This
resulted in a small loss in width on the main span by changing where the fencing landed, narrowing the
deck in certain places from 14 feet to 12 feet in width. Chair Member Young asked if the changes in VE
Option #2 could be done, but the lighting be left the same and Mr. Totten replied that not as it was
currently priced, but there could be ways to accomplish that. He provided an overview of VE Option #3:
Delete East Stair and explained that removing the east stairs would increase the path of travel by
approximately 450 feet and would save approximately $700,000-800,000. Chair Member Young asked if
the bridge could be constructed in a way that allowed those stairs to be added at a later date and Mr.
Vanderzanden replied that was an option. Public Works Director Sheldon added that if that option was
pursued, then the city could apply for Oregon Parks and Recreation grants to build the staircase. Mr.
Totten clarified that half of the approximate savings of VE Option #3 overlapped with VE Option #1 and
URA Board of Directors

November 21, 2023
Page 3 of 6



DRAFT

VE Option #2. He Provided an overview of VE Option #4: East Approach Ramp Railings and explained
that this option removed all railings not required by code for the east approach ramp to Sunset Boulevard
and reported this option would save approximately $400,000-500,000 and discussion occurred. Chair
Rosener, Vice Chair Mays, and Chair Member Scott commented that they were interested in pursuing
VE Option #4 and VE Option #3. Mr. Totten stated that there were four additional value engineering
options that would provide a smaller amount of savings and outlined them as: A.) deleting the steel plate
wall at east approach, saving $110,000-140,000; B.) deleting or deferring art wall lighting at east
approach, saving $10,000- 20,000; C.) changing the stainless steel truss rods/struts to galvanized, saving
$100,000-$130,000; and D.) adjusting the Kruger Path grading to eliminate the railings, saving $140,000-
180,000. Board Member Scott asked if the high school needed to approve of adjusting the Kruger Path
grading to eliminate the railings option and Mr. Vanderzanden replied that it was likely that the high school
would want to be consulted. Board Member Scott and Vice Chair Mays stated that they liked the options
of deleting the steel plate wall at east approach and adjusting the Kruger Path grading to eliminate the
railings and discussion occurred. Chair Rosener asked if the Board wished to pursue the options of
deleting the steel plate wall at east approach and adjusting the Kruger Path grading to eliminate the
railings and the Board Members signaled their agreement. Board Member Giles referred to the options
that substituted galvanized steel for stainless steel and commented that he felt that the savings from
changing from stainless steel to galvanized steel was insignificant compared to having a bridge that was
more visually appealing. Board Member Scott commented that he agreed and said that in addition to
options A and D he would be in favor of removing the east staircase and removing the railing next to the
YMCA facility. Chair Rosener asked if there was consensus for removing the east staircase and the
railings next to the YMCA facility and the Board stated they agreed to remove those items. The Board
addressed arch lighting options and Board Member Giles commented he was open to the alternative of
colored strip lighting emanating from the arches if more concrete financial figures could be provided.
Board Member Scott commented that if the arch lighting alternative was chosen, then the bridge could
be painted red since the lights would not affect the paint color as drastically. The Board commented that
they were concerned about the ongoing maintenance of the arch lighting alternative and the Board asked
KPFF to look into the estimated savings of choosing the arch lighting alternative as well as the estimated
lifespan of the chosen lighting. Vice Chair Mays stated that he wished to keep the colored uplighting for
the arches because of his concerns about ongoing maintenance costs and upkeep. Public Works Director
Sheldon commented that he was also concerned about the maintenance of the arch lighting alternative.
Mr. Vanderzanden clarified that if the original arch lighting option was chosen, then part of the railing
savings would also go away. Chair Rosener asked for feedback on replacing the illuminated railings with
poles for pathways option. Board Member Scott asked about the estimated savings for this option and
Mr. Halsey replied that he estimated that each lighting alternative would save $800,000 at most and
discussion occurred. Board Member Brouse summarized that if the Board was not interested in switching
from stainless steel to galvanized or changing the lighting, then $1.2 million was the most that could be
saved from the presented value engineering options. Chair Rosener asked for feedback on stainless
steel versus galvanized steel and Board Member Giles asked if stainless steel handrails and galvanized
steel mesh could be used instead. Mr. Halsey replied that the handrail could remain stainless steel while
the structural framing could be switched to galvanized steel for an estimated savings of $600,000-
800,000 and discussion occurred. Board Member Scott commented that changing the posts to galvanized
steel, keeping the railing, mesh, and bar that ran the length of the mesh stainless steel for visual cohesion
was also an option. Mr. Halsey replied that this option would then match the rods on the trusses. Chair
Rosener asked if there were corrosion issues if dissimilar metals were touching and Mr. Halsey replied
that it was not a concern in this instance, but in other areas of the bridge, it would be a concern. Board
Member Standke commented that he was open to spending a bit more money on the bridge in order to
URA Board of Directors

November 21, 2023
Page 4 of 6



DRAFT

achieve the desired aesthetic rather than saving a small amount of money for a finished product that they
would be unhappy with in the long run. He stated that he would change the posts to galvanized steel and
keep the mesh and railings stainless steel and discussion occurred. Board Member Brouse voiced that
she felt that the financials for the bridge needed additional work, but she agreed that it did not seem that
the value engineering options that the Board was open to pursuing would result in enough savings to
justify the compromise in the finished product. Board Member Scott stated he preferred to cut the stairs
and the YMCA railing and leave everything else the same since the savings did not justify the changes
to the project. Chair Rosener stated that he agreed and asked if there was consensus on that, and the
Board signaled their agreement. Mr. Halsey recapped the Boards decisions as: no changes to lighting,
no changes to the bulk of the railings, removal of the east staircase with the provision that it could be
added in the future, removal of the handrails from the YMCA landing, removal of the steel plate wall at
east approach, adjusting the Kruger path alignment, and eliminating the hand railings on the west
approach. He stated that he estimated that these adjustments would save a little over one million dollars.
Chair Rosener asked when the Board would need to meet to approve the final design and Public Works
Director Sheldon replied that if the documents could not be submitted in time for the December 5" City
Council meeting, then a special meeting may need to be held to approve the contract. City Attorney
Adams commented that he felt that none of the changes from this meeting significantly changed the
scope of the project and a new RFP process would not be necessary. Discussion occurred regarding the
borrowing capacity of the URA and Finance Director Bodway reported that the URA’s maximum
indebtedness was $166 million and explained that there were two different funds within the URA, the
Operations Fund and the Capital Project Fund. He continued that the Capital Project Fund had nearly
$16.5 million in available funds and the city’s operational cost was budgeted for $1.2-1.3 million and TIFF
revenue was $1.1 million. He stated that there was an available fund balance because of the way in
which the loans were structured and referred to capitalized interest. Board Member Standke commented
that he was concerned about a future Council not having enough funding available because too much
was spent on the pedestrian bridge and Ice Age Drive projects. Mr. Bodway replied that that was a
misconception and spending the funds now on the pedestrian bridge and Ice Age Drive would only delay
other projects from starting. Discussion regarding various upcoming projects occurred and Vice Chair
Mays commented that if the pedestrian bridge was postponed until Sherwood West was being developed,
then there would be opportunities for parts of Sherwood West to cover some of the pedestrian bridge
costs as well as other infrastructure needs. Discussion regarding the opportunity to provide pedestrian
safety and connect the east and west sides of the city and the increase costs of construction if the project
was delayed occurred. Vice Chair Mays and Chair Rosener commented that the pedestrian bridge was
a “generational project” and felt that this was an opportunity that should not be dismissed. Board Member
Scott outlined the funding that the city would lose for the project if the project was delayed and voiced
that he would like to move forward with the project. Board Member Giles spoke on his hesitancy
proceeding with the bridge knowing the updated estimates as well as the ability for the city to recoup
costs once Ice Age Drive was built out. Chair Rosener asked if the contract was a fixed-cost contract and
Public Works Director Sheldon replied that was correct. Board Member Giles asked if $50,000 was a
good estimate for if the city went out for another RFP process and Mr. Sheldon replied that he believed
it would not cost $50,000 but the process would take between six weeks to three months to complete
and commented that it was likely that the same contractors would bid again. Board Member Giles asked
if there was public support for the pedestrian bridge “at any cost” and Vice Chair Mays replied that from
his perspective, there was still support for the bridge even at the increased cost. Board Member Brouse
referred to the “safety issue versus a connectivity issue” aspect of the bridge project and asked if it was
possible to “make it a connectivity issue” in the Master Plan and discussion occurred. Public Works
Director Sheldon explained that if the pedestrian bridge were built, it would be incorporated into the city’s
URA Board of Directors

November 21, 2023
Page 5 of 6



DRAFT

Parks Master Plan and Transportation System Plan to ensure connectivity of the city’s trails via the bridge.
She referred to the need to pull funds from the Water Fund and Mr. Sheldon explained that the 2030
build-out timeline was an estimate. She asked what was at risk by not developing Ice Age Drive and Mr.
Sheldon explained that City Engineer Jason Waters was currently looking into that and explained that
the city was at risk of losing the $3 million in state funding for the project. City Engineer Waters added
that the city had 15 years to complete the development of Ice Age Drive, but the city had less than 15
years to spend the federal funds. Chair Rosener asked for each Board member’s opinion. Board Member
Young stated that she agreed with Board Member Scott in proceeding with the project. Board Member
Standke recapped staff feedback stating that the project was feasible, with the only possible downside
being that if may delay certain city projects and would not impact the city’s budget. He commented that
Sherwood residents were still in favor of a pedestrian bridge, and he therefore approved of proceeding.
Board Member Brouse stated that she was still on the fence but was closer to agreeing with proceeding
and commented that she would still like to think about it. Board Member Giles stated that he was closer
to agreeing with proceeding than at the start of the meeting and commented that he would still like to
think about it. Chair Rosener stated that he agreed with Board Members Standke and Scott and
commented that it was rare for cities to have this type of opportunity. Vice Chair Mays commented that
the pedestrian bridge was integral to Sherwood West. Board Member Young commented that no matter
which projects were chosen, it would delay starting other projects. Board Member Giles commented that
he wanted to create a “pedestrian friendly zone” given the pedestrian bridge’s location near the high
school and voiced that he would like to proceed with a connectivity mentality versus a pedestrian bridge
just for student use. Board Member Brouse and Chair Rosener stated they agreed that a pedestrian
friendly zone should be incorporated into the planning for the area around the bridge. Board Member
Standke reported that he had recently spoken with Representative Neron regarding the pedestrian bridge
funding, and she had commented that a lot of effort had gone into procuring the funds for the bridge. She
drew attention to the fact as a more affluent community, it could negatively impact future funding requests
if the city did not proceed with the project.

5. ADJOURN

Chair Rosener adjourned the meeting at 9:15 pm.

Attest:

Sylvia Murphy, MMC, Agency Recorder Tim Rosener, Chair

URA Board of Directors
November 21, 2023
Page 6 of 6



URA Board Meeting Date: December 12, 2023

Agenda Item: New Business

TO: Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency Board of Directors

FROM: Jason Waters, P.E., City Engineer

Through: Craig Sheldon, Agency Manager (City Manager Pro Tem); Alan Rappleyea Temp City
Attorney

SUBJECT: URA Resolution 2023-011, Authorizing the Agency Manager to Enter into a Public
Improvement Contract with Carter & Company, Inc. for Construction of the Hwy 99W
Pedestrian Bridge Project

Issue:

Shall the Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency authorize the Agency Manager to enter into a Public
Improvement Contract with Carter & Company, Inc., for construction of the Hwy 99W Pedestrian Bridge
Project?

Background:

Six (6) bids were received as part of the public solicitation for construction bids issued by the City of
Sherwood and Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency on 8/30/23, 9/1/23, 9/5/23 and 9/6/23 in both the
Portland & Seattle Daily Journal of Commerce (DJC) publications with the low bid submitted on October
31, 2023, by Carter & Company, Inc., 4676 Commercial Street SE, #203, Salem, OR 97302 in the amount
of $23,982,211.80. The base-bid amounts submitted by the five other (5) reputable contractors from low-
to-high is as follows: $24,243,517.77 (HP Civil Inc.), $25,440,898.40 (Legacy Contracting, Inc.),
$27,118,512.00 (Wildish Standard Paving Co.), $27,487,272.50 (Hamilton Construction Co.), and
$28,065,432.10 (Stellar J Corporation) with the average amount of the other base-bids equal to
$26,471,126.55.

All six (6) bid proposals were significantly higher than the amount anticipate in the Engineer’s Estimate
($17,293,026.68) and the probable cost quoted in the bid advertisement of $18,100,000.00, and in order
to present the most fiscally sound contract for award, the City posted a notice of intent to begin negotiations
with the apparent low bid contractor, Carter & Company, Inc. to complete Value Engineering to reduce the
base-bid price down by eliminating certain aspects of the project that can be added at a later date or
adjusted slightly while delivering the same high-quality, long-lasting product that has been presented and
advanced throughout the design process.

During a Work Session on November 21, 2023, City staff and the design consultant presented the results
of the initial value engineering negotiations with the low-bid contractor. The City Council / URA Board
Members supported the removal of the stairs connecting to the Hwy. 99W NB sidewalk north of the bridge,
which can be deferred to a future project, deletion of guardrails from the at-grade path along SW Sunset
Blvd, elimination of a steel landscaping wall underneath the bridge on the east side near the YMCA, and
re-alignment of the pathway connecting to Kruger Road to reduce its slope and eliminate code-required
handrails while maintaining a separation from the Sherwood High School access path. Final negotiation of
URA Resolution 2023-011, Staff Report

December 12, 2023
Page 1 of 2



these changes with the low-bid contractor resulted in a reduced base-bid amount of $21,998,411.80 after
Value Engineering.

The Final Notice of Intent to Award a construction Contract to Carter & Company, Inc. for $21,998,411.80
was issued on Monday, December 11, 2023 and the seven (7) day protest period will end on December
18, 2023.

Assuming the contract is awarded, the pre-construction meeting will be scheduled for early January, the
contractor will begin mobilization efforts, and all necessary erosion control measures should be in place &
ready for initial inspection in February 2024 after which the contractor will begin working in earnest. The
work will continue through Summer 2025 with the goal of having the bridge substantially complete and
open to the public before the start of school in Fall 2025, which it’s important to note the project would not
be able to be completed by the start of the 2025 school year if the project were re-bid this coming Spring
or put on-hold.

Financial Impacts:

The total cost of the Hwy 99W Pedestrian Bridge Project exceeds current funds available to the Agency.
By entering into this contract, these funds will be exhausted requiring the Agency to obtain from the City a
loan, up to $12,000,000, to complete this project. The loan terms, repayment schedule and interest rate
will be proposed at a future date.

Recommendation:

If the Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency Board of Directors wants to obtain a loan, up to $12,000,000 from
the city, staff respectfully recommends adoption of URA Resolution 2023-011 Authorizing the Agency
Manager to enter into a Public Improvement Contract with Carter & Company, Inc. for Construction of the
Hwy 99W Pedestrian Bridge Project.

URA Resolution 2023-011, Staff Report
December 12, 2023
Page 2 of 2



DRAFT

=

1ty of
Shétwood
Oregon

Home of the Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge

URA RESOLUTION 2023-011

AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT
WITH CARTER & COMPANY, INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE HWY 99W PEDESTRIAN
BRIDGE PROJECT

WHEREAS, the City and URA completed the design and produced bid documents to solicit contractors
using a competitive bidding process meeting the requirements of local and state contracting statutes and
rules (ORS 279C, OAR 137-049); and

WHEREAS, bids were advertised publicly on 8/30/23, 9/1/23, 9/5/23 and 9/6/23, opened on October 31*,
2023, and six (6) bids were submitted by pre-qualified contractors; and

WHEREAS, the Engineer’s Estimate of Probable Cost was well under the lowest bid received, at
$18,100,000.00 and therefore Value Engineering was completed with the low-bid contractor in an attempt
to reduce the base-bid amount 8% to 9%; and

WHEREAS, staff and the design consultant, KPFF, entered into Value Engineering negotiations with the
apparent low-bid contractor Carter & Company, Inc.; and

WHEREAS, the Value Engineering negotiations with Carter & Company, Inc. reduced the base-bid amount
down by $1,983,800.00 from $23,982,211.80 to $21,988,411.80 or 8.3%; and

WHEREAS, the Notice of Intent to Award a Contract to Carter & Company, Inc. was issued on December
11, 2023 and the mandatory seven (7) day protest period will end on December 18, 2023; and

WHEREAS, staff recommends the Agency Manager be authorized to execute a Construction Contract with
Carter & Company, Inc. in the amount of $21,988,411.80 plus $2,201,588.20 (10% of the revised base-
bid amount) for Contract Change Orders.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE SHERWOOD URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY BOARD RESOLVES AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Agency Manager is hereby authorized to execute a Construction Contract upon the
completion of the seven (7) day protest period with Carter & Company, Inc. in a base
contract amount of $21,988,411.80.

Section 2. The Agency Manager is hereby authorized to execute Construction Contract Change
Orders with Carter & Company, Inc. up to $2,201,588.20.

Section 3. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption.

URA Resolution 2023-011
December 12, 2023
Page 1 of 2



DRAFT

Duly passed by the Urban Renewal Agency Board this 12'" day of December 2023.

Tim Rosener, Chair

Attest:

Sylvia Murphy, MMC, Agency Recorder

URA Resolution 2023-011
December 12, 2023
Page 2 of 2



URA Board of Directors Meeting

Date: December 12, 2023

e List of Meeting Attendees: v/
¢ Request to Speak Forms: v/

e Documents submitted at meeting: v/

None.




Approved
Minutes



SHERWOOD URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday, December 12, 2023

City of Sherwood City Hall
22560 SW Pine Street
Sherwood, Oregon 97140

URA BOARD WORK SESSION

1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Rosener called the meeting to order at 7:30 pm.

2. BOARD PRESENT: Chair Tim Rosener, Vice Chair Keith Mays, Board Members Kim Young, Dan
Standke, Renee Brouse, and Doug Scott. Board Member Taylor Giles attended remotely.

3. STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT: City Manager Pro Tem Craig Sheldon, Assistant City
Manager Kristen Switzer, IT Director Brad Crawford, Finance Director David Bodway, Police Chief Ty
Hanlon, Legal Counsel Alan Rappleyea, City Engineer Jason Waters, and Agency Recorder Sylvia
Murphy.

4. CONSENT AGENDA:

A. Approval of August 15, 2023 URA Board Meeting Minutes
B. Approval of November 21, 2023 URA Board Meeting Minutes

MOTION: FROM BOARD MEMBER SCOTT TO APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA. SECONDED BY
BOARD MEMBER BROUSE. MOTION PASSED 7:0. ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR.

Chair Rosener addressed the next agenda item.
5. NEW BUSINESS:

A. URA Resolution 2023-011, Authorizing the Agency Manager to Enter into a Public Improvement
Contract with Carter & Company, Inc. for Construction of the Hwy 99W Pedestrian Bridge
Project

City Engineer Jason Waters explained that the proposed resolution awarded the contract to construct the
pedestrian bridge for a total of $21,988,411.80 with a contingency of 10%. Chair Rosener explained that
the pedestrian bridge fell within the city’s URA and Resolution 2023-085 authorized the city to loan money
to the URA while the construction contract would be managed by the URA. Vice Chair Mays and Board
Member Young said they appreciated the work that had been done on the value engineering for the
project. Board Member Scott commented that the pedestrian bridge project had been discussed by both
Council and the URA Board of Directors many times over the years leading up to this point. Board
Member Standke asked for the estimated target timeline for the construction of the bridge and City
Engineer Waters replied that he hoped to have the bridge substantially complete within 18 months. Board
Member Giles commented that he was happy to have a pedestrian bridge at that location, but he had
concerns about the cost and would not be voting in favor of the resolution. He spoke on the importance

URA Board of Directors
December 12, 2023
Page 1 of 2



of ensuring that the city’s parks and trails had good connectivity to the bridge. Chair Rosener gave his
thanks and kudos to city staff, KPFF consultants, and community members who had shown support for
the project. With no other Board comments the following motion was stated.

MOTION: FROM BOARD MEMBER YOUNG TO APPROVE URA RESOLUTION 2023-011,
AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT
WITH CARTER & COMPANY, INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE HWY 99W PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE
PROJECT. SECONDED BY BOARD MEMBER SCOTT.

Prior to calling for a vote on the motion, Vice Chair Mays stated that he was excited about the project and
gave his thanks and kudos to the community and those involved with getting the project to this stage.

MOTION PASSED 6:1. CHAIR ROSENER, VICE CHAIR MAYS, BOARD MEMBERS YOUNG, SCOTT,
STANDKE, AND BROUSE VOTED IN FAVOR. BOARD MEMBER GILES OPPOSED.

6. ADJOURN

Chair Rosener adjourned the meeting at 7:40 pm.

Attest:

S e Ui

Sylvi( Murphy, MMC, Ag//ency &kcorder

URA Board of Directors
December 12, 2023
Page 2 of 2



	01  URA Board Meeting Packet Cover 12.12.2023
	02  URA Board Meeting Agenda 12.12.2023
	SHERWOOD URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	MEETING AGENDA
	A. Approval of August 15, 2023 URA Board Meeting Minutes (Sylvia Murphy, Agency Recorder)
	B. Approval of November 21, 2023 URA Board Meeting Minutes (Sylvia Murphy, Agency Recorder)
	C. URA Resolution 2023-011, Authorizing the Agency Manager to Enter into a Public Improvement Contract with Carter & Company, Inc. for Construction of the Hwy 99W Pedestrian Bridge Project (Jason Waters, City Engineer)

	03  08.15.2023 URA Board Meeting Minutes - DRAFT
	04  11.21.2023 URA Board Meeting Minutes - DRAFT
	05  URA Resolution 2023-011 Auth Contract Carter Co Hwy 99W Ped-Bridge - STAFF REPORT
	06  URA Resolution 2023-011 Auth Contract Carter Co Hwy 99W Ped-Bridge - DRAFT
	CC MEETING RECORD PLACEHOLDER.pdf
	PLACEHOLDER CC Exhibits Template.pdf
	Yellow Minutes PDF.pdf


